1953

# State of Utah et al v. Cooperative Security Corporation of Church of Jesus Christ of Latter Day Saints et al : Brief of Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

**STATEMENT OF FACTS**

This appeal is taken from the Judgment fixing the compensation to the owner upon condemnation, made and entered April 10, 1953, in the District Court of Wasatch

County, State of Utah, by the Honorable Joseph E. Nelson, one of the Judges of said Court, sitting without a jury, after and in purported pursuance of the reversal by this Honorable Supreme Court of the judgment, made and entered after trial before the same Judge in the cause, without a jury, and appealed to this Supreme Court by the plaintiff, State Road Commission. A motion for a re-hearing of the decision in this court was made and denied.

State, by and through Road Commission, et al,

vs.

Cooperative Securities Corporation, etc.

— U —

247 P (2d) 209

After the remittiture had come down, Judge Nelson notified counsel for the parties to appear before him in the District Court of Wasatch County on March 13, 1953, and the Court calendar for that date noticed the said cause, "To be set for trial."

Mr. Budge, Deputy Attorney General for the Road Commission, and Arthur Woolley, for the defendants (Mr. L. C. Montgomery of Heber City having recently died), appeared before the Court at the time fixed.

The reporter did not report the proceedings before the Court at that time. The Attorney General had prepared a proposed Order and Judgment which he handed up to the Court, and which is the same Order and Judgment now appealed from.

Counsel for the defendants contended that pursuant to the mandate of the Supreme Court stated in the decision on appeal, it was "necessary for the Court to re-

assess the damage for the taking on a basis of the replacement cost, as well as to assess damages, if any, to the two small tracts which were severed."

The amounts stated in the form of judgment handed up by the Attorney General and adopted by the Court were calculated as follows: The area of the two small tracts was multiplied by \$400.00, and the sum divided by two, that is to say that these tracts were worth \$400.00 per acre and damaged 50% by the severance. The area taken, viz: 7.89 acres was multiplied by \$400.00, and this amount in dollars was added to the damage to the small tracts, and this is the sum and amount carried forward into the judgment.

Defendants' counsel contended that pursuant to the mandate of the Supreme Court, it was the duty of the Judge to determine the number of acres of land remaining to Berg, and adjacent to the land of the Church, which, according to and by comparison with the land of the Church taken in the condemnation, would be necessary to replace the 7.89 acres of land of the Church condemned, and that this number of Berg acres should be multiplied by \$400.00, the price fixed by Berg for his acres, and that this figure would be the replacement cost.

The Court thereupon set the matter down for March 27, 1953, at Heber City, when, his Honor stated, he would either sign the form of judgment presented by the Attorney General, or enter an order that a hearing be had, and further stated that if he should decide to have a hearing to assess the damages, the matter would be heard on May 4, 1953, at Heber City.

The Deputy Attorney General and counsel for the defendants appeared to attend the Court at Heber City

on March 27th. We were informed that Judge Nelson was ill, and was not able to appear. The matter did not come on.

Thereafter, and without further notice to counsel, and under date of April 10, 1953, in open Court at Heber City, according to the record, Judge Nelson signed the form of Order and Judgment as presented to him by the Attorney General on March 13, as aforesaid, and the judgment was entered by the clerk. Neither party was represented at that session, and the defendants, at least, were not notified.

This appeal is taken from this judgment so made and entered.

## STATEMENT OF POINTS

### POINT I

THE JUDGMENT DOES NOT SUBSTANTIALLY COMPLY WITH THE DECISION AND MANDATE OF THE SUPREME COURT.

### POINT II

THE AWARD WAS NOT ARRIVED AT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RULING OF THE SUPREME COURT IN THE CASE.

### POINT III

THE AWARD DOES NOT CONFORM TO THE PROOF IN THE CASE.

### POINT IV

THE JUDGMENT DOES NOT AWARD JUST COMPENSATION TO DEFENDANTS.

### POINT V

THE JUDGMENT IS AGAINST LAW.

## ARGUMENT

### POINT I

#### THE JUDGMENT DOES NOT SUBSTANTIALLY COMPLY WITH THE DECISION AND MANDATE OF THE SUPREME COURT.

The judgment now appealed from finds:

“That the replacement value of the seven and eighty-nine hundredth acres (7.89) of the land of defendants taken by plaintiff for the purpose of right-of-way, was, on February 16, 1950, four hundred dollars per acre — that, therefore, defendants are entitled to judgment against plaintiff in the following amounts:

Value of land taken	\$3,156.00
(7.89 acres at \$400.00 per acre)	
Damage to land not taken by reason of severance	734.63
(4.49 acres at 50% of \$400.00 per acre)	_____
TOTAL	\$3,890.63”

Thus, it is manifest that the Court did not consider, or pass upon, or determine the comparative value of the land taken from the Church farm with the adjacent land of Berg, which would remain to him after part of his land was taken by the same highway improvement.

Mr. Justice Wade, in the opinion of the Court on the appeal, pointed out that whereas the land to the east of the Church property had been valued by Berg at \$400.00 an acre, it might be determined that it would take more than 7.89 acres of Berg's land to equal, in value, the 7.89 acres of land taken from the Church, and Justice Wade



further commented that even though under the application of this formula it would have taken the entire 15.3 acres (the total of Berg's land) to replace the 7.89 acres condemned, the amount would be much less than that granted by the Court, and therefore, the Supreme Court could not assume that the trial Court based its severance damages on the amount it would have cost respondents to replace the condemned land, which was a proper element in determining the value of the condemned land.

It is accepted as the rule of this case that there was no basis for severance damages as such, but that the replacement cost should be the measure of damages.

And it was and is the ruling of this Honorable Court in this case, and the mandate handed down to the trial Court, that,

“It becomes necessary for the court to reassess the damage for the taking, on a basis of the replacement cost \* \* \* .”

The formula for computation of the amount of the award under this ruling, we submit, was not followed by Judge Nelson in the judgment here now appealed from.

We submit that it is the rule and law of this case that, as to the land taken, it was, and is the duty of the trial Judge to first factually determine that there existed, at the time of the commencement of the action, comparable land available, and how many acres of that land it would require considering its quality and location in comparison with the land of the Church being condemned. This requires an appraisalment of the land remaining to Berg, and what its relative productive value was compared to the Church land taken.

The price of \$400.00 per acre was fixed by Berg upon all of his 15 plus acres. What the Attorney General has done, and what the trial Court has seemingly assumed, is that, acre for acre, the Berg land, which he offered, was of equal value in all respects for dairy purposes as that taken from the Church farm. The evidence in the case did not support this conclusion, and it was definitely not the holding of this Honorable Supreme Court that such was the case. The quoted portion of the opinion clearly indicates, we submit, that this Honorable Court had in mind the disparity between the worth of the Berg land, and the worth of the Church land.

The formula adopted by Judge Nelson simply totally ignores the matter of replacement and restoration of economic balance of the farm, but adopts the single element: namely, the acre value in place of the land taken.

## POINT II

### THE AWARD WAS NOT ARRIVED AT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RULING OF THE SUPREME COURT IN THE CASE.

The law of this case is that it is "necessary for the Court to reassess the damage for the taking, on the basis of the replacement cost." In order to arrive at the amount of damage, it is necessary for the Court to first determine the quality of the available land offered for replacement, acre for acre. This fact has not been found, either at the trial of the case, nor by this Honorable Supreme Court, nor by Judge Nelson since. It is true that Judge Nelson, in his original decision, gave the in place value of \$325.00 per acre to the 7.89 acres taken, whereas in the judgment tendered him by the Attorney General, \$400.00 is assigned as the per acre value of this

same 7.89 acres of land taken. The adoption of the Attorney General's figure did not change the "arbitrariness."

If, as suggested by Mr. Justice Wade, it might require the entire 15.3 acres of Berg's land to replace the 7.89 acres of the Church land taken, we would be entitled to a judgment for \$6,120.00 for the land taken, because \$400.00 per acre was the price Berg fixed for all of his land that he offered. There is, accordingly, still at least \$2,964.00 of margin over and above the decision from which this appeal is taken, and still within the formula of the Supreme Court in the case, as to which defendants are entitled to a "judicial" determination.

### POINT III

#### THE AWARD DOES NOT CONFORM TO THE PROOF IN THE CASE.

The situation affecting the Berg property was not fully explored at the former trial. Some testimony was given concerning the nature of the Berg land and its value in comparison with the Church land taken. Some objections were sustained to evidence to its use and value, that is to say, its comparative value as against the Church land.

In our Brief on the Motion for Re-hearing, we attempted to secure from this Honorable Supreme Court, a clarification of the opinion as handed down by the main opinion written by Mr. Justice Wade, and the brief concurring opinion by Mr. Justice Wolfe. We suggested that the imprecisions in the opinion might cause difficulty. We asked these questions:

"Does it require or permit a new trial?"

“May either party, if so minded, produce additional evidence upon the question of comparability?”

“Or new or additional evidence upon the question of the in place value of the land taken?”

“And generally, just how is the trial Court to proceed to reassess the damages for the property on a basis of the replacement cost as well as to assess damages, if any, to the two small tracts which are severed?”

“And, does the court mean to hold that there is not a severance damage to the meadow south of the new highway? If not, upon what theory, pray?”

Each of these questions is now here again.

First, was a new trial, or re-hearing, or the taking of additional evidence necessary or permissible?

And, what was the formula that this Honorable Supreme Court would have the trial Judge apply in farm land cases for assessing damages?

Surely, the law is not that the Attorney General may write a judgment and have it adopted *laissez faire*.

The law does not justify arbitrary judgment, even though it may favor one side or the other. Judgment, to be lawful, must be based upon full knowledge and impartial weighing of all pertinent facts.

Having several times driven the highway involved in this case and seen the land in place which is involved in this appeal, and having heard the evidence taken at the trial, we adopt the suggestion made by Mr. Justice Wade that it might take all of the 15 and a fraction Berg

It is at least the hope of the subject that, upon the facts to be found under the new formula, a larger measure will be required to hold the just compensation in this cause than the one carried to Court by the state's Attorney General.

## POINT V

### THE JUDGMENT IS AGAINST LAW.

The cornerstone of American Justice is the right to an open trial and judgment rendered by the trier of the facts, freely and fairly presented to the judge or jury.

Such a trial has not been had in this case under the rule of the case prescribed by the Supreme Court.

A "reassessment" without hearing "facts" which were not offered or which were excluded at the former trial because not pertinent, as the Judge then considered, is not a fair trial, and a judgment so rendered is not a lawful judgment.

Respectfully submitted,

ARTHUR WOOLLEY,  
*Attorney for*  
*Defendants and Respondents*  
617 Eccles Bldg., Ogden, Utah