1953

State of Utah et al v. Cooperative Security Corporation of Church of Jesus Christ of Latter Day Saints et al : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

We point to error in appellant's Statement of Facts;
the statement made to the effect that, "The Attorney
General had prepared a proposed Order and Judgment

which he handed up to the Court * * * ” on the hearing of March 13, 1953, is not the fact. The official court reporter certified as follows:

This is to certify that I, R. Dean Seely, am one of the Official Court Reporters of the Fourth Judicial District Court of Utah; that on March 13, 1953, I was present in Court in Heber City, Utah in the aforementioned matter, No. 1822 Civil; that before proceedings were commenced the Court asked respective counsel if they wanted a record made of same, and was informed that it would not be necessary. For that reason no stenographic report was taken of the proceedings on that day.

Dated at Provo, Utah, this 26th day of May, 1953.

/s/ R. Dean Seely, CSR
Official Court Reporter

And, the minute entry made as follows:

This matter came on to be set for trial, the Supreme Court having heard an appeal and sent the case back to the District Court for settlement. Mr. Budge of the Attorney General's Office represented the Plaintiffs, and Mr. Arthur Woolley represented the Defendants, and they argued matters pertaining to the Supreme Court ruling and possibilities of a settlement. The Court requested that Plaintiff prepare an order of settlement and submit to the Court, and furnish a copy to defendants, in the event this order is not approved by the Court. The date of trial was set for May 4, 1953, at ten o'clock A.M. Court will rule on the Order on March 27, the next law and motion day.

/s/ Joseph E. Nelson
JOSEPH E. NELSON—JUDGE

The fact is, as the record shows, counsel for respondent had made certain computations as to damages such as were in line with the argument to be presented. Counsel for appellant was afforded an opportunity to, and did, reply to respondent's argument. Thereafter, the Court took the matter under advisement and at the same time directed counsel for respondent to prepare and submit a Judgment and Order which, in the event the Court held for respondent, he would sign; otherwise, the cause would be set for further hearing on March 27, 1953. In compliance with the Court's direction, the Office of the Attorney General prepared and submitted on March 18, 1953, the Order and Judgment which the Court subsequently signed. Counsel for appellant was furnished by letter mail, under date of March 18, 1953, a copy of the Order and Judgment submitted to the Court.

This slight and possibly insignificant difference as to the facts is here remarked upon merely for the purpose of reviewing the regularity of the proceedings. Respondent never has, and does not now, contend the law to be that the Attorney General may prepare a judgment and have it adopted *laissez faire*.

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT I

THE JUDGEMENT COMPLIES WITH THE DECISION OF THE SUPREME COURT; THE AWARD WAS ARRIVED AT IN ACCORDANCE WITH SAID DECISION; THE AWARD CONFORMS TO THE PROOF; JUST COMPENSATION FOR THE TAKING WAS AWARDED; AND THE JUDGMENT IS NOT AGAINST LAW.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE JUDGMENT COMPLIES WITH THE DECISION OF THE SUPREME COURT; THE AWARD WAS ARRIVED AT IN ACCORDANCE WITH SAID DECISION; THE AWARD CONFORMS TO THE PROOF; JUST COMPENSATION FOR THE TAKING WAS AWARDED; AND THE JUDGMENT IS NOT AGAINST LAW.

We think appellant's Point I through V are so inter-related as to best be considered one and altogether. We ask the Court's indulgence in our so doing.

This Court held in the case of State of Utah, et al., v. Cooperative Security Corporation of Church of Jesus Christ of L. D. S., et al.,Utah....., 247 P. 2d 209, that:

Since the evidence shows that this property could have been replaced, there was no basis for the award of severance damage except as to the two small tracts.

Therefore, respondent contends that it was not necessary for the court below on reassessment of damages to consider, or pass upon, or determine the comparative value of the land taken with the value of the land which could have been purchased, but was not purchased, for replacement purposes. True, as appellant alleges, this Court went on to say:

It becomes necessary for the court to reassess the damage for the taking, on a basis of the replacement cost * * *.

Respondent interprets that to mean the replacement cost of the 7.89 acres actually taken. This the judgment of the lower court does, and does at a value per acre

established at the trial to be the value of the land taken in place at the time of the service of summons. It was also sufficiently determined at the trial by the witnesses of appellant herein that \$400.00 per acre was the value of comparable land within that area at that time.

If, as appellant contends proper, the Court had made the measure of damages the replacement cost as appellant interprets the meaning thereof, the result would be the mere saying: "You cannot have severance damages but you can secure equal relief as you might have had by severance by arriving at your damages in an entirely different manner. You cannot go down A. street, but, B Street will get you to the same destination." For example, were it to be determined that the 7.89 acres taken could only be compensated for by the determination that to restore the value thereof, it would take fifty or one hundred acres of adjoining land such as that owned by the Berg holdings, damages then could be assessed at \$20,000 or even \$40,000; and yet, this Court held there was not basis for the award of severance damage. Appellant, if he cannot go overland, purposes to go round the horn by sea.

This Court, concluding its opinion and with respect to the two small tracts, comprising in the aggregate 4.49 acres, went on to say:

* * * as well as to assess damages, if any, to the two small tracts which are severed.

thus adjudging that here if there were damages by reason of severance, such should be assessed.

The transcript of the original hearing elicits testimony to the effect that this land depreciated in value \$100.00 per acre for resale purposes by reason of the severance; (Tr. 58) and further testimony to the effect that it was no longer of a size to be of any consequence and practically worthless; (Tr. 135,167) also, as to the 3.28 acres, that it was depreciated in value from forty to fifty per cent (Tr. 167), from \$425.00 per acre to something over \$200.00 per acre (Tr. 177), on interrogatories by the trial judge himself. There was much more additional testimony as to the damage to, and value of, these tracts. All of which is significant here, if at all, only to show that the trier of facts was well informed on this question of severance damage. Respondent now submits that the award made in the amount of \$743.63 and the percentum arrived at of fifty per cent was reasonable and in no way arbitrary. Respondent feels that it cannot be rightfully alleged that the court below "adopted" the Attorney General's figure; we contend that it might more correctly be said that the Court, having heard the evidence, and the Attorney General, having read the transcript, reached a similar result from the evidence adduced.

We think appellant's contention that the judgment is against law is entirely without basis. Since beginning with the commencement of this action and continuing throughout its long litigation, the record speaks for itself to the effect that appellant has been fully heard.

CONCLUSION

The judgment of the court below should be affirmed.
Respondent asks his costs on appeal.